Minutes of a meeting of the Employment and Personnel Committee of the Bolsover District Council held in the Council Chamber, The Arc, Clowne on Thursday, 16 September 2021 at 14:00 hours, adjourned and reconvened for Thursday 23rd September at 13:00 hours.

PRESENT:-

Members:-

Councillor Duncan McGregor in the Chair

Councillors Mary Dooley, Sandra Peake and Liz Smyth.

Officers:- Karen Hanson (Joint Director of Environment and Enforcement), Theresa Fletcher (Assistant Director of Finance and Resources & Section 151 Officer), Sarah Sternberg (Solicitor to the Council & Monitoring Officer), Grant Galloway (Director of Development), Sara Gordon (Human Resources and Organisational Development Manager), Nicola Calver (Governance Manager), Pam Brown (Assistant Director of Leader's Executive), Lisa Ingram (Legal Team Manager - Contentious Team) and Natalie Etches (Business Growth Manager).

EMP1-21/22 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR 2021/22

Moved by Councillor Liz Smyth and seconded by Councillor Sandra Peake. **RESOLVED** that Councillor Duncan McGregor be elected Chair of the Employment and Personnel Committee for 2021/22.

EMP2-21/22 APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR FOR 2021/22

Moved by Councillor Duncan McGregor and seconded by Councillor Mary Dooley. **RESOLVED** that Councillor Liz Smyth be elected Vice Chair of the Employment and Personnel Committee for 2021/22.

At this point, the Committee proposed an adjournment in order to obtain more information on some financial implications for one of the reports. It was deemed that all reports should be considered together in one meeting.

Moved by Councillor Duncan McGregor and seconded by Councillor Liz Smyth **RESOLVED** that the meeting stand adjourned and be reconvened on 23rd September 2021.

The following Decisions were taken at the reconvened meeting.

EMP3-21/22 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

No apologies for absence were received in advance of the meeting.

EMP4-21/22 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

There was no urgent business to be considered at the meeting.

EMP5-21/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were requested to declare the existence and nature of any disclosable pecuniary interests and/or other interests, not already on their register of interests, in any item on the agenda and withdraw from the meeting at the appropriate time.

There were no declarations made at the meeting.

EMP6-21/22 SENIOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT OFFICER POST

The Committee considered a report of the Assistant Director of Development and Planning, which sought approval to create a new position of Senior Economic Development Officer (Tourism and Visitor Economy) within the Economic Development Team.

The report stated that the new post would be a full time post and the main duties and responsibilities were set out in Appendix 1 to the report. The person specification was set out in Appendix 2 to the report. The post was required to be a full time permanent role due to the number of initiatives and priorities identified within the recently adopted Tourism Strategy. The cost for the creation of the post per annum was between £41,121 and £46,960.

In considering the report, the Members present were of the opinion that the proposed role, and growth in the establishment, was necessary.

Moved by Councillor Duncan McGregor and seconded by Councillor Liz Smyth. **RESOLVED** that -

- A new full time permanent post within the Economic Development Team for the role of Senior Economic Development Officer (Tourism and Economy), be approved subject to Council approving the budget increase required;
- 2. A revenue budget increase of £41,121 £46,960 to fund the salary and all associated costs as a result of establishing this post on the payroll, subject to job evaluation and consistency checks confirming the grade of the post, be recommended to Council; and
- 3. That the Assistant Director of Development and Planning be given delegated authority to complete the recruitment and selection of a suitable candidate, if the post was scored grade 8 or less.

(Assistant Director of Development and Planning/ Human Resources and Organisational Development Manager)

EMP7-21/22 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

Moved by Councillor Duncan McGregor and seconded by Councillor Liz Smyth.

RESOLVED that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1,2 and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act and it is not in the public interest for that to be revealed.

EMP8-21/22 INCREASE IN HOURS OF VACANT SOLICITOR POST

The Committee considered a report of the Monitoring Officer, which sought to increase the hours of a vacant solicitor post from 22.5 hours per week to 37 hours per week on a permanent contract. This would increase the staffing budget by up to £21,454 including on-costs.

The report set out details of the current staffing of the Contentious Legal Team. A review of the services provided by the Contentious Team showed that the team was undertaking significantly more work and greater breath of work type, exceeding the currently capacity of the team.

On consideration on the matter, the Committee were of the view that the case made for the increase in staffing capacity and budget was approved, and that the matter would accordingly be recommended to Council for approval.

Moved by Councillor Sandra Peake and seconded by Councillor Duncan McGregor. **RESOLVED** that -

- 1. the hours of the permanent solicitor post be increased from 3 days/22.5 hours per week to 5 days/37 hours per week, subject to Council approving the budget increase required; and
- 2. the increase of budget by up to £21,454 be recommended to Council for approval.

(Monitoring Officer/Human Resources and Organisational Development Manager)

EMP9-21/22 STRUCTURAL REVIEW OF THE GOVERNANCE TEAM

The Committee considered a report of the Governance Manager which presented proposals for a restructure of the Governance Team. The report set out two options for the restructure, both of which increased the management capacity of the team.

Members considered the proposals in relation to the creation of a Civic Officer position and rejected this pending further consultation with the Partnerships Team and the Chair of Council. Arrangements for Civic would remain as established.

The proposals within option 1 of the report, including creating a Full Time Governance

Manager were approved as necessary to ensure the service was fit for purpose, and would subsequently be recommended to Council for the growth in budget.

Moved by Councillor Duncan McGregor and seconded by Councillor Liz Smyth **RESOLVED** that –

- 1. That Option 1 for the Governance Team Restructure by agreed subject to Council's approval of growth in the salary budget of £27,958.
- 2. Formal consultation commence on the proposed structure.
- 3. An SLA be agreed between North East Derbyshire District Council and Bolsover District Council for the temporary provision of Members' ICT support.
- 4. The civic support function be considered at a later date.

(Governance Manager/Human Resources and Organisational Development Manager)

EMP10-21/22 LEADERS EXECUTIVE AND PARTNERSHIP TEAM STAFFING REVIEW

Members gave consideration to a report of the Portfolio Holder for Enforcement and Partnerships which set out proposed staffing adjustments within the Leaders Executive and Partnership Team to remain current to the District's needs and support the Counci'ls future ambitions.

The essence of the recommendations made was a request to move staff funded from external sources on to the establishment, but at the same time continue to pursue sufficient external funding to cover the costs associated with this. Three members of staff would be brought permanently in-house and some existing positions would be uplifted reflective of Job Evaluation and duties at a cost of £115,438 for year one.

A strong business case was considered, including current funding sources and income generation to reduce the projected costs by 50%. Members noted that this was not guaranteed, but believed that the potential for further income generation and value added outweighed the risk.

RESOLVED that -

- 1. the proposed staffing review be agreed, subject to Council approving the budget increase required;
- 2. the proposed restructure, posts become part of the establishment and the regrades aligning with the case put forward be agreed, subject to Council agreeing the budget increase required;
- 3. it be recommend to Council that an additional annual budget of circa £70,178 be approved, noting that income generation to partially offset additional costs would be sought wherever possible; and

4.

years.

a target be set to secure a minimum of £66,000 per annum income over the next 5

5